Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
May 10, 2016

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was
held Tuesday, May 10, 2016 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Josh Potter, Commissioner Tim Fowler, Commissioner
Carolyn Casey, Commissioner Eber Warren and Commissioner Cliff Braly.

MEMBERS ABSENT: none

OTHERS PRESENT: Carolyn Braly, Town Manager; Dennis Humenik, Planning
Board Chairman; Nick & Val Calcavecchia; Carol Wright, President of MBG&CC;
and Ben Hollowell.

Mayor Potter welcomed everyone to the meeting, called the meeting to order with a
moment of silence and led everyone in the U.S. Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to the May 12, 2016 BOC meeting
agenda. Commissioner Fowler moved to approve the agenda. All ayes.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to April 12, 2016 meeting minutes
before approving. Commissioner Warren moved to approve the minutes. All ayes.

Public comments:

I . Dennis Humenik asked about signs in right of ways. Mayor Potter said signs
should only be on private property. Any signs on the state right of ways are the
responsibility of the state. Mayor Potter said we can ask Larry to go around
and remove any signs from the town's right of way.

2. Mr. Humenik asked what to do about street lights being out. He was told to report
any outages to the Townhall.

3. Mr. Humenik wants the fire hydrants located, marked and cleaned around them.
Commissioner Braly will check into the number of hydrants in the town and the
location of each. Commissioner Braly said the hydrants were for water
distribution. A fire in the town would be fought with pumper trucks and pools
set up at the hydrants.

4. Mr. Humenik asked about upping the penalty for nuisance animals as is in the
Code of Ordinances. Mayor Potter explained the history of the ordinance and
said it has been effective as is.

Minnesott Beach Golf & Country Club
1. Ben Hollowell reported on the status of MBG&CC. He said the membership is
aging out and young people are not playing golf. The club wants to get more of
the citizens of Minnesott Beach to become actively involved. They are looking



into creative ways to offer social memberships. Carol Wright, president of the
MBG&CC, said the club wants to reach out to all citizens in every way
possible. She asked if the Town could help communicate with all the town's
citizens. She explained they need to get the word out on the different activities
available. She asked if the town would put information on the Town's webpage
and allow a sign on the Town's property with directions to the golf club for the
ferry traffic. Carol said she has contacted Cherry Branch community and plans
to meet with them at their next homeowners' meeting in June. Mr. Hollowell
said if one is under 18, they can play golf at MBG&CC free. They are trying to
get more young people interested in playing golf. Carol Wright asked for any
ideas to draw outside folks to the club and to get involved. Commissioner
Fowler asked Carol for a letter about the club that could be publish without
"advertising" the business.

Minnesott Beach Golf & Country Club issues will be put on the agenda for June's
meeting.

2. Valeria Calcavecchia said she would like to see the MBG&CC become more

of a community center with the social membership. She is putting together
several activities to include town families. The first program, Fossils found
Near Minnesott Beach, is May 24" from 3:30pm-5pm with Judy Stiles, a town
resident and local fossil enthusiast. The Arapahoe Charter School has been
invited to bring the after school kids in for the program. It is a no charge event.
Hot dogs will be for sale for $1. Mrs. Stiles will make a presentation and then
take the kids to the beach to look for fossils. Valeria said she is working on
several other events for later in the summer. Carol said they are planning an
open house so folks can see what is available to members. It will be a free event
with free hot dogs, with games for the kids. Valeria said they are hoping to
convince the residents the value of supporting the club and becoming a
member.
Commissioner Fowler said if they have an event schedule, we would discuss the
possibility of putting it on the webpage at the June board meeting. Mayor Potter
said there is no doubt that MBG&CC is an asset to the town. However, he
expressed concerns on advertising the MBG&CC with 4 other businesses in the
town. The town would have to offer the same opportunities to all the other
private businesses in Minnesott Beach. Mayor Potter said he would seek legal
advice what could be done legally, morally & ethically. Carol said the golf club
is a 501 (c) (7) business. It is a non-profit social golf club.

Town Manager's Report — Two permits have been approved. A pool on Hwy 306 S
and a fence at 753 CCDW. New updated pages for the Code of Ordinances were passed
out to the commissioners.

Planning Board Report: Had a meeting in April and will have another in July, unless
something comes up.

Old Business — for discussion and possible motion and/or action:



I. Town clean up — Commissioner Braly reported he has rented a truck from Jeff
Styron and Larry has two other folks to help with the Town clean-up on May 12
&

13. Sandwiches will be ordered from fast food

2. Drainage — Commissioner Braly discussed correcting the drainage problems at
the corner of Country Club Drive and Hardison Drive. Ken Heath came out and
they looked at how to correct the drainage problem by reconstructing the ditch
and cleaning out the culvert to the river. Mr. Heath quoted a "not to exceed"
$5,000 price. Commissioner Braly moved to spend no more than $5,000 to
correct the problem. All ayes. Commissioner Braly will contract with Ken
Heath to do the work. Commissioner Fowler asked what the cap was on what
Commissioner Braly has the authority to spend without coming before the board
for permission. Commissioner Warren said $ 1 ,500.

New Business - for discussion and possible motion and/or action.

1. Arlington Place letter of credit — Mayor Potter reported he had received another
email from Mr. Bill Tabb, a resident of Arlington Place, about the status of the
roads and what the town is doing about the roads being brought up to state
standards. He said since 2007 the town has extended the letter of credit per their
requests every year. They do not want to put the final asphalt coat on the roads
because of the continuing construction and possible damage done by the large
trucks using the roads. We have been receiving a certified NC PE
estimate/verification of the cost to finish the job. As of last summer the estimate
was $1.7 million and the engineer certified that it was sufficient to bring the
roads up to state standards. Mayor Potter asked for board guidance. After much
discussion, Commissioner Braly moved to have Mayor Potter will write a letter
to Arlington Place regarding the letter of credit.

2. 2016-2017 Budget — Commissioner Warren presented the proposed budget for
the coming year to the Board of Commissioners. He recommends the tax rate be
kept the same as the last few years: $0.13 per $100. Commissioner Warren asked
that any adjustments be given to the Town Manager by June 1. The Board will
vote on the budget at the June 14, 2016 meeting. Commissioner Warren moved
to have a public hearing on the Budget with a vote to follow. All ayes.

Financial Report: Commissioner Warren reported the financial figures as of April 30,
2016 have revenues running over budget by 110.61 % and expenditures are running
under planned spending by 61.28%. The town's current assets are: First Citizen's Bank
Checking $13,261.31,; First Citizen's MM $248,831.87; First South Bank & Savings
$216,759.55; North Carolina Management Trust is $200,8881.12; Petty Cash $50.00.
The town currently has 4 CDs at First South Bank & Savings ($40,000; $20,542.96;
$20,119.55; and $20,034.68). Total assets to the Town are a total 0f$803,521.83. The
balance sheet is in excellent shape at this time.

Miscellaneous: Commissioner Warren said Russ Cotton complained about having a fox
in his yard and Don Lane on Country Club Drive West complained that the mess left
behind by Tideland contractor's had not been cleaned up yet. Commissioner Braly said
he had talked with Tideland several times and the work had begun on CCDW last week,



but due to the wet weather, they had not been able to finish the work. Hopefully, they
will be able to begin the work this week, if there is no more rain.

Lommissioner warrgn movea 10 aajourn. All ay

¢ Meyerson, Town Clerk



